Borough of Cresskill
Zoning Board of Adjustment
Public Meeting 7:30 pm

Minutes July 28, 2022 Page 1of 9
Present in Person: Ms. Batistic, Mr. Kassis, Mr. Cleary, Mr. Corona, Mr. McCord,
Mr. Van HorneEsg.(Board Attorney),Ms. Bauer (recording secretary)
Absent : Ms. Westerfeld

Mr. Kassis was delayed .

Mr. McCord called the meeting to order at 7:30 pm

Ms. Bauer did the roll-call

The June 23 minutes were approved by Mr. Cleary and seconded by Mr. Corona

Mr. McCord said we are going to skip application # 1392, because we are waiting for another Board member,
and we’ll go to 1393. Avi Bacalu ?

Mr. Baculu answered yes.

Application

1393 Avi Bacalu 300 County Road Block 72 Lot 1.02
Required Existing Proposed Variance

Front Yard Set Back 25 ft. 78.2 ft. 78.2 ft.

Side Yard Abutting/ 15 ft. 6.9 ft. 6.9 ft. enc

Lot

Other Side Yard 20 ft. 7.11t. 7.1 1t enc

Combined Side Yards | 35 ft. 14.0 ft. 14.0 ft. enc

Min. Rear Yard 30 ft. 157.6 ft. 157.6 ft.

FAR

Height of Building 28 ft. 25 ft. 25 ft.

Lot Frontage 100 ft. 59.46 ft. 59.46 ft. enc

Lot Depth 100 ft. 283.14 ft. 283.14 ft.

Bldg. Coverage % 20% 12.9% 12.9% enc

Impervious Coverage | 34% 62.6% 71.9% 9.3% over

variable approved approved

03/24/2022 existing
Lot Area 10,000 sq. ft. 16,927 sq. ft. | 16,927 sq. ft.

Mr. Bacalu is seeking to extend the pool patio. The Board previously approved the Impervious Coverage of
62.6% for extension of the pool patio on March 24, 2022

Mr. Sean McClellan, engineer, with Lantelme, Kurens & Associates, said that he was representing the
applicant.



Borough of Cresskill
Zoning Board of Adjustment
Public Meeting 7:30 pm
Minutes July 28, 2022 Page 2of 9

1393 (cont.) Avi Bacalu 300 County Road Block 72 Lot 1.02

Mr. Sean McClellan was sworn in.

Mr. McClellan testified that 300 County Road., has a very narrow and very deep lot. The lot width is
59.46’and lot depth is 283.14” , and the lot area is about 17,000 sq.ft.

As you are aware, if you have a lot narrower than 100’ you are only allowed to use the lot area within 125°. If
you calculate Impervious Coverage , our 125’ line comes pretty much right behind the existing house. So 165
linear feet, we cannot use that area for Impervious calculation. Existing total coverage is 4538 sq.ft. The area
within the 1257 is 7433 sq.ft. Divide 4538 by 7433, the Impervious Coverage is 61.1%. We have presently the
existing house, a driveway, patio and pool, we are looking for a patio around that pool . That would add an
additional 800 sq.ft. That would put the Coverage at, its going to sound like a high number, at 71.9% . If we
were able to use the area of our entire lot, that number would only be 32.1%. So as a percentage of the entire lot
its in line with the house. We were here once before. We were at 61.1% . We were here 3 months ago. We did
get a variance to keep at 61.1%. ... The pool is not adversarial, we just needed to get a variance for the 116 sq.ft
of the coping and keeping at 61.1%, at that time, we were proposing to the removal of a portion of the
driveway...... described the drawback to the removal of portion of driveway. So we are proposing to keep that
driveway as it exists today, and add about a little less than 600 sq.ft of patio. That gives 807 sq.ft ....... more
coverage than is currently there now. Just the run-off measures, we are proposing a perimeter drain around the
pool and the patio to collect any excess water ....... that perimeter drain leading into a drainage chamber, so
there will be no increase of run-off on the property.

That’s what I have now, I’'ll be happy to answer any questions ?

Mr. McCord asked is the patio built now ?

Mr. McClellan said there is an existing patio now. Right now, the pool is being constructed.. The patio that we
are seeking a variance for has not been built.

Ms. Batistic said | have a question about the coverage calculation. For the existing driveway you have 1690
sg.ft. and for the proposed you have 1830 sq.ft. Is this 1690 removed ?

Mr. McClellan said sure, the driveway as its always been is the 18 and thirty. The last time we were before the
Board, we were proposing to reduce the driveway to 1690. So we used that in our calculations to show that we
wanted to go back to the original driveway, even though the course in the driveway hasn’t been cut out yet.

Ms. Batistic said so the existing is 1830, and it will remain 1830.

Mr. McClellan said correct.

Mr. Kassis said that reduction was part of the last application in order to gain the coping for the pool.

Mr. McClellan said yes, the coping for the pool.

Mr. Kassis said when you were here the last time, the reduction of the driveway was part of the calculation for
getting approval when you were in front of the Board.

Mr. McClellan said we had to come in for a variance even though we were keeping the coverage exactly the
same. In order to do that with 120, 16 sq.ft of the pool coping, we were going to take off an equal amount from
the driveway so that there was no increase in coverage. After realizing that that would affect the turn around
area of the driveway, the proposal now is to not have to cut that bush in the driveway away, and to seek the
variance of the extra 807 sq.ft coverage..

Ms. Batistic asked about the proposed access way. Is that currently there ?

Mr. McClellan said there is currently an access window there and we are proposing to have steps going down
to that- to get to the basement.

Mr. McCord said please tell me if I am wrong. | seem to recall there was some discussion about, | think it was
Ferbruary, that the core as planned would essentially be sitting in a grassy field, with no deck around it, because
of the Impervious Coverage issue.




Borough of Cresskill
Zoning Board of Adjustment
Public Meeting 7:30 pm
Minutes July 28, 2022 Page 3of 9

1393 (cont.) Avi Bacalu 300 County Road Block 72 Lot 1.02

Mr. McClellan said Right.

Mr. McCord said OK this is that application. I remember we asked :‘are you sure that you want a pool with
grass around it ?” And the answer was: ‘absolutely, we don’t care that there is no deck around it’. So what
happened ?

Mr. McClellan said So | think that the existing coverage of 61.1% . That sounds like “Wow’. We didn’t want to
come in and ask for an increase .We just wanted to keep it at that number. It did seem so extreme . We want
approval for the pool and we want to keep the coverage almost the same.

Mr. McCord said so are you admitting then that you essentially misled us the first time ?

Mr. McClellan said I don’t think that we misled.

Mr. McCord asked how would you describe it ?

Mr. McClellan said it seemed we were not going for a variance by keeping the coverage the same.

Mr. McCord said but you had no intention of keeping the pool in the middle of a grassy field. That you
testified to. Am I right ?

Mr. McClellan said I can’t remember what I testified to.

Mr. Kassis said that is the recollection I have. We are looking to balance your clients’ needs for immunity for a
very large request of Impervious Coverage. And maybe more than the usual amount of concrete or patio
surfaces back there. Which is something was more important than apron around the pool. How more important
is this than the existing Patio paver. By removing that, creating less of an Impervious Coverage, and giving you
your apron around the pool. There has to be give and take here. You are looking for everything, you came back
for a second scoop of ice-cream, here tonight -to extend something that wouldn’t have got passed the first time.
This application is not significantly different than what was requested. Am | missing something ? This
application, and the Impervious Coverage requested the last time, you are just adding more to what you already
have. Right ?

Mr. McClellan said yes

Mr. Kassis said am | saying it correctly ?

Mr. McClellan said I really don’t want to cut back the driveway. We might be able to do something with the
existing patio that is there. To reduce it to have some apron around the pool. The existing patio now is 421 sq.ft.
Mr. Kassis said if you move the patio behind the 125’ mark, it would be less of an Impervious issue. Because
the first 125’ is used to calculate it.

Mr. McClellan said Actually all improvements on this property, except the house and driveway, are all beyond
the 125°. I believe that it’s the Zoning Official’s interpretation of the code is that all the impervious house on
the lot, ....... is divided by the first 125. There are towns, I know Glen Rock has a 40’ line , everything beyond
that line is divided by the entire area. In Cresskill, no matter what is on the property, we are only dividing by the
first, in our case, 7433 sq.ft., while we have almost 17,000 sq.ft., so that’s where our hardship is.

Ms. Batistic asked what would be the coverage if you were taking the entire area ?

Mr. McClellan said 32.1%

Ms. Batistic said 32.1%. With this patch ?

Mr. McClellan said we are allowed 34% because of the lot narrow.

Ms. Batistic said the narrowness of the lot is a hardship. However, the standard lot size is 10,000.

Mr. McClellan said 100 by 100.

Ms. Batistic said 100 by 100. So if the lot were 100 by 100 you would still have 50 (somewhat) percent of the
coverage. Wouldn’t you ?

Mr. McClellan said yes, it would be 53%. But if we had a 100’ wide lot, which is the lot width, we would have
a 28,000 sg.ft lot because we are so deep.....

Mr. Kassis said were hypothetically talking about 100 by 100. Not 100 by whatever you have. If you had 100
by whatever you have, we would not be here tonight.




Borough of Cresskill
Zoning Board of Adjustment
Public Meeting 7:30 pm
Minutes July 28, 2022 Page 4 of 9

1393 (cont.) Avi Bacalu 300 County Road Block 72 Lot 1.02
Mr. McClellan said sure. But also if this lot was 100 by 100, our house would not be pushed so far back and
we would have a lot less driveway covered. Right now our house is 78’ back, and actually about a third of our
house is half the 100’ lot . So we would have so much less driveway covered, so actually we would have some
room for improvements.
Mr. McCord asked what is the flooding situation right there ? I know from various hurricanes we’ve had, that
that area has been pretty badly flooded.
Mr. McClellan said that’s a perpetual problem here as well with the Impervious Cover issue. Actually the
entire patio area will be stored in the drainage chamber. So the increase will be contained.
Mr. Kassis said but then the pit floorage will be overwhelmed and no longer be Impervious Coverage.
Mr. Kassis said this is a lot. You have a lock here, you have an existing paver patio. So far there has been no
concessions regarding trying to reduce that . Whether or not the paver patio is more important than the apron
around the pool. We have to strike a balance here. And I don’t believe in 20 something years we’ve had a
dominant Board oppose Impervious Coverage of this number. I think almost 25 years I’ve been on this Board.
This will be a record breaker, | believe.
Mr. Mr. Kassis said McClellan said it does sound like a lot.
Mr. Kassis said it is a lot.
Mr. McClellan said the entire house, and the driveway are all within that 125, and then everything is beyond it.
So we are using less than half of our lot area calculation. And we are dividing the Impervious coverage
calculation on the entire lot by 7400°. The lot is almost 17,000 sq.ft
Mr. McCord said the dichotomy between your testimony today versus your testimony 2 months ago, 3 months
ago, you were willing to take away part of the driveway as a concession. Now you are not taking away the
driveway and you are just adding, Why were you willing to concede something then and not now ? Why is it?
Mr. McClellan said | think that maybe being nervous about going forward with 61%, it just sounds as such a
high number.
Mr. McCord said If we didn’t do it the last time why would we do it the next ?
Ms. Batistic said | agree that the driveway turn-around should not be taken out for the safety. | have safety
concerns, because it is a county road, and you don’t want to back-out onto a county road. But the K-turns can be
smaller...... it can be proportional to the width of the cottages. I don’t know how much that would reduce. This
more like parking than turn-around.
Mr. McClellan calculated 125 sq.ft
Mr. Kassis asked are there any other questions for the applicant ?
Discussion among the Board members
Mr. Kassis said I’'m ready to make a motion.
Mr. McClellan said he wanted to confer ‘off-the record” with Mr. Bacalu in the hall.
Mr. McClellan and Mr. Bacalu conferred for about 5 minutes
Mr. McClellan said okay, we have confirmed our concerns and we’d like to have the opportunity to do some
revisions and come back ?.
Mr. van Horne asked do you want to carry it for one month.
Mr. McClellan asked Mr. Bacalu if one month was enough.
Mr. Bacalu agreed that it was enough.
Mr. McClellan asked about notification.
Mr. van Horne said you will not have to notice again. Because it will be announced here that this will be
carried to the next meeting, and therefore you do not have to do the notification to owners with 200’ and
complications. The next meeting will be the 4" Thursday in August.
Mr. Kassis made a motion to adjourn this matter to Aug.25........ All in favor ?
All ZBOA members said ‘Aye’




Borough of Cresskill

Zoning Board of Adjustment
Public Meeting 7:30 pm

Minutes July 28, 2022

Application

1392 Kathy Kim 14 Cedar St B54 L6
Description Required Existing Proposed | Variance
Front Yard Set Back 25° 27.8° 27.8°

Side Yard 15° 10.9° 10.9 4.1°
Abutting/Lot

Other Side Yard 20° 10.7° 10.7° 9.3°
Combined Side 35 21.6° 21.6° 13.4°
Yards

Min. Rear Yard 30’ 55.3° 473

FAR 34.32% 24.3% 37.8% 3.48%
Height of Building 28’ 25° 28’

Lot Frontage 100° 75° 75° enc

Lot Depth 100’ 128.4° 128.4°

Bldg. Coverage % 20% 21.5% 26.1% 6.1%
Impervious Coverage | 32.4% 30.5% 34.2% 1.8%
variable

LotArea 10,000Sq.ft 9,625 9,625 enc

Page 5 of 9

Mr. Serdar Kayman is the project architect and representative for the owners.

The applicants are seeking the above variances to construct an addition to their home.

Mr.
Mr.

Mr.

Mr. Kayman said yes.

Mr. Van Horne asked and how long have you been licensed ?

Mr.

Kayman said In New Jersey maybe 8 years.

Mr. Van Horne asked have you testified before at any boards or courts ?

Mr.
Mr.

Kayman said yes

that was utilized...

Mr. Kassis said the Page A 0.01 which is reflected on your top there, appears to be a duplication of a survey or
survey dimension there is no indication who originally prepared those dimensions. And it does not appear

Kayman was sworn in by Mr.VVan Horne .
Mr. Van Horne said | think the Board and Chairman have a question as to whether or not there was a survey

anywhere that | can see on any of your drawings, am | missing something ?

Kassis said we are here to hear Application 1392. Could you please step forward.
Serdar Kayman introduced himself as architect for the client..
Mr. Van Horne asked are you licensed in the state of New Jersey ?

Kayman said correct.
Mr. Van Horne asked and you are in good standing ?



Borough of Cresskill
Zoning Board of Adjustment
Public Meeting 7:30 pm

Minutes July 28, 2022 Page 6 of 9
1392 Kathy Kim_(cont.) 14 Cedar St B54 L6
Mr. Kayman said ......... cut-off in the page but his survey has been done recently, maybe a couple of months
ago, by a licensed surveyor, as he has the survey that we can present. But ........ same survey.

Mr. Kassis said you have a survey with a legal seal from an engineer with you tonight ?

Mr. Kayman said not tonight. We have a soft copy that we could provide.

Mr. Kassis said no, we would need something that we could enter into evidence.

Mr. Van Horne said technically the application is incomplete, and it should not have been on the agenda,
without that survey being submitted to the Board secretary.

Mr. Kassis said and without that being able to produce it with us right now, we are making a judgment that
could be altered if the survey comes back and the numbers indicated on this depiction of that survey are
different than what was produced by a licensed surveying engineer.

Mr. Kayman said they are exactly the same because we are using a PDF background that....

Mr. Kassis said we don’t know that.

Mr. Kayman said but we can prove it ....... we can do a subject for finding the survey..... which is exactly the
same as the A 0.01, that’s okay.

Ms Kathy Kim said that she had the copy at home in Cresskill and would go and fetch it.

Mr. Kassis asked where do you live ?

Ms Kathy Kim said 14 Cedar St.

Mr. Kassis said so you are going to Cedar St.

Mr. Van Horne said so the only thing is though, if you are going to leave the Hearing, you’ve got to
understand that you are not going to claim you are prejudiced because you are not present at the Hearing, in a
way that likes to be present for a portion of the hearing. Are you willing to do that ?

Ms Kathy Kim said yes.

Mr. Van Horne said Okay. And do you think that you will be back in 15 minutes ?

Ms Kathy Kim said I’ll try to be back in 15 minutes. Yes.

Mr. Kassis said Okay, Thank-you. We are going to proceed with the assumption of the accuracy of the mission,
and the page that was provided. With that being said, why don’t you move forward with a description of what
you have planned and why there are so many variances needed in order to get this application approved.

Mr. Kayman said yes, sure. On Cedar St., between Poplar Ave and Chestnut St.....becomes a dead-end St. Its
an existing 3 bedroom, 1 % story split level on a narrow 75’ , non-compliant lot , with a one car garage. The
existing house is not compliant with the current Zoning requirements. We are proposing an addition to the
house, also some adjustment to the roof structure. Also to the facade, to incorporate some architectural
elements to the house. Give it some character. To renovate and fill out the house. If you refer to.....that’s the
existing house- from the back, from the rear, so there is a 2" story added at some point and there is an entry gap
under the ....... addition. And there is also a deck in the rear. So we are proposing to provide some addition on
the deck existing structure.

Mr. Kayman described how the existing variances in Side Yards, Impervious Coverage, and Building
Coverage were impacting the Proposed request for variances.

Mr. Kayman said in the front all the walls are existing. We are changing the roofing structure. We are
changing the roof height. The rotation of the existing walls remain the same

Mr. Kayman described the basement renovation turning the one car garage into a 2 car garage, and
increasing the size of the driveway.

Mr. Kayman said we want to extend the kitchen and also add another ... ..... at the top of the kitchen

Mr. Kayman said there are spaces inside the house that are not usable. That’s why our numbers are higher
than what is required.

Mr. Kayman said we are proposing a house that is more pleasing to the neighbors, also from the rear of the
house.



Borough of Cresskill
Zoning Board of Adjustment
Public Meeting 7:30 pm
Minutes July 28, 2022 Page 7 of 9

1392 Kathy Kim_(cont.) 14 Cedar St B54 L6

Mr. Kassis said the current Impervious Coverage. The area below the raised addition in the back, is that
included in the Impervious Coverage ?

Mr. Kayman said correct.

Mr. Kassis asked as it currently stands ?

Mr. Kayman said yes.

Mr. Kassis asked is there a patio you under there ?

Mr. Kayman said concrete.

Mr. Kassis said concrete. There’s a lot. Has there any thoughts been given to trying to get this to a closer
number without exceeding the FAR.

Mr. Kayman said we tried but because of the shape of the house.....the client wanted certain features....that’s
why the numbers are a little bit higher than what we expected expected.

Ms. Batistic said | have a question regarding the height. You said that you will comply with the height.

Mr. Kayman said yes.

Ms. Batistic asked will this first floor elevation remain as it is now ?

Mr. Kayman said correct.

Ms. Batistic said So the first floor is 104.46.

Mr. Kayman said correct.

Ms. Batistic said now from the first floor to the top you have 23 feet 11 inches.

Mr. Kayman said correct.

Ms. Batistic said so one in three feet 11 inches.

Mr. Kayman said I can explain that. So in the ordinance the height is taken from the front yards, and I don’t
remember, I think it was a number of locations. We divide it equally so we get the number- so that’s the
average. So it should be 28 feet

Ms. Batistic said the average grade in the front, correct.

Mr. Kayman said if you look at the elevation in the front, it should be 8201. You have that 28 feet dimension
line. It’s just showing the average grade. The average grade is also the same as......

Ms. Batistic said okay that was my question. Your first floor is at 104.46 which is on the server. It says First
Floor 104.46 with your key.

Mr. Kayman said yes

Ms. Batistic said and then you have 23.92 feet. You have 23........ correct ?

Mr. Kayman said correct

Ms. Batistic said so you are going to be at 28.38. Are you keeping the grades or are you filling the ......
There is not much difference but the grades on the survey show that....... is 149 and the other is 99.8.

Mr. Kayman said they are not making any changes. The grades are not changing. We will comply with the 28
feet requirement as per the ordinance. If there is a slide mistake, we will fix that.

Ms. Batistic said Okay. Because you are right at at....... If you keep the grade, you are quite over board.

Mr. Kassis said it’s a big house in this street. | personally have concerns over this FAR and the Building
Coverage numbers. Impervious Coverage is not a big issue. You will have to put in whatever necessary to keep
it fit, as the town requires. But those two numbers are problematic. They are large, and in comparison to the
houses in the neighborhood . I happen to know that house because | drive up and down that street every day,
and there are a lot of foot-level along that entire street, across the street, to the right of you, to the left of you.
This house is going to be sizably different than the houses in the neighborhood .

Mr. Kayman said if you are driving by, the front is not going to change. Its going to be a little bit higher in
compliance with requirements. So we are just trying to fill the gap

Mr. Kassis said you are trying to maximize , forgive me for saying this, you are trying to maximize the
footprint of your house, You find a number that we might be interested in approving. Right ?




Borough of Cresskill
Zoning Board of Adjustment
Public Meeting 7:30 pm
Minutes July 28, 2022 Page 8 of 9

1392 Kathy Kim_(cont.) 14 Cedar St B54 L6

Mr. Kayman said of course.

Mr. Kassis said would you be able to point to a house that has this significant increase ?

Mr. Kayman said Ihaven’t researched that, but I can research it, you know.

Mr. Kassis said we have an application in front of us tonight. If you don’t have that, its alright.

The other thing was, if we were to approve this application, without the increase in Floor Area Ratio exceeding
the allowable limits. Could a house, be designed by you, that would accommodate that ?

Mr. Kayman said we can try to reduce, maybe the family room which is under the addition. So that we can
make some adjustment to reduce the size of that room, and in the upper level......... interference from paper
rusting......and the kitchen and dining room as well

Mr. Kassis said so, if I am understanding your answer, its possible.

Mr. Kayman said yes , however its going to affect......... its not going to line-up...... but it will definitely
reduce the FAR.

Mr. Kassis said | believe that the reductions from the original form right now, would be architecturally better
and would fit / match the neighborhood more closely than that addition on stilts.

Ms. Batistic commented on the effect of the design changes on the architecture.

Mr. Kassis said | hope you are getting a sense that there is some concerns with this application . We could vote
on it the way it is here tonight. If it doesn’t pass, you would have to go back to the drawing board, and come
back with something materially different as an application, re-present it, re-notify and everything else. Or you
can ask that this be carried to the next meeting. Make some changes and come back to us- with something that’s
based on some of the comments that you have heard. I haven’t heard from everybody on the Board. Anybody
else have any comments that they would like to make ? And then you can utilize that. Could come back, sit
down with your clients, and then come back with something that you believe would have a better chance of
getting passed.

Mr. Kayman said | think I understand what the Board thinks about this application.

Mr. Kassis said we can’t really give you a general nod of approval or dis-approval. We can make comments
about it- but we cannot give you a summary. Each of us can’t give you a summary of what we feel about the
application. You have to extrapolate out of what we are asking you, and whether or not, and speak to your
client, whether or not there is some way you can get, at least in my opinion, the Floor Area Ratio without the
need of a variance. That’s my opinion. I don’t know what the rest of the Board feels, that would be up to them
of course. And making that adjustment, probably will adjust the total Coverage. So those two can work hand in
hand. The Impervious Coverage extending the driveway, a person has an issue with it, its on a busy street and a
double driveway is not appropriate there. Your back-yard is ....... its a lot . Is there any other comments from
members of the Board ?

Mr. Corona said | would concur with what the Chair person said . 1 would also love to see almost a guarantee
that there would be no height issue. We’ve run into that before. People promise and then. So if there’s a way , if
you are going to adjust, you may as well want to factor that in to make sure or ensure that you won’t violate the
height regulation. It’s a pretty dramatic house in that neighborhood. The one that’s acutely cornered from where
you are, everything else is a little bit over sold. It looks nice but........

Mr. Kassis asked any other comments or concerns ? The decision is purely up to you

Mr. Kayman said | think we have to go back and study this some more. Try to reduce the size and then come
back. I think when we come back, we will be asking FAR variance as well. I don’t think without the FAR
variance, this project is not feasible. Fixed variance will not work it.

Kassis said okay. That variance would require a super majority.

Mr. Van Horne said you need five affirmative votes for FAR approval. So what we will do upon your request,
is adjourn this to the next meeting.

Mr. Kayman said_yes




Borough of Cresskill
Zoning Board of Adjustment
Public Meeting 7:30 pm
Minutes July 28, 2022 Page 9 of 9

1392 Kathy Kim_(cont.) 14 Cedar St B54 L6
Mr. Van Horne said If you revise the plans, you have to submit them more than 10 days from the day of the
hearing.

Mr. Kassis said and be sure to include the up-dated survey with that.

Mr. Kayman said yes, of course.

not the updated- the actual survey.

Mr. Kayman said yes

Mr. Kassis said alright, that was the request, so we will see you at the next meeting.
Mr. Kayman said thank-you so much.

Mr. Kassis said motion to adjourn with no memorialization.

Ms. Batistic made the motion to adjourn.

Meeting was adjourned at 8:28 pm



